
NEVADA STATE BOARD  

of 
DENTAL EXAMINERS 

 

 

 

Board Teleconference Meeting 

 

Wednesday, June 12th, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

 
 

PUBLIC BOOK  



PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Meeting Date & Time 
Wednesday, June 12th, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 
Meeting Location: 

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners 
2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy., Suite 104 

Henderson, NV 89014 
Video Conferencing / Teleconferencing Available 

    To access by phone, call +1 775-321-6111 
  Phone conference ID: 102 876 722# 
  To access by video webinar, visit 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup- 

join/19%3ameeting_NGFiMDNiNDEtZWYyOC00YThmLWI3YWItNmUyYzNiNGEwM2Y4%40thread.v2/0?context=
%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e4a340e6-b89e-4e68-8eaa-1544d2703980%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2263bc0c4d-
c589-4d8a-8392-7015dda26a9b%22%7d 

   Webinar/Meeting ID#: 224 694 425 750 
 Webinar/Meeting Passcode: yjJt5n

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available after roll call (beginning of 
meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes for each individual. 

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, 
Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the 
Board on or before Tuesday, June 11, 2024, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public 
comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record. 

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing before the 
Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 3) pull or remove items 
from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional 
competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or 
a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See 
NRS 233B.126. 

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone conference, it is possible that an 
amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with 
the Open Meeting Law. 

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If 
special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you may download the 
supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the supporting materials for the public 
body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014. 

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 
Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or tabled. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
http://dental.nv.gov/


1. Call to Order 
- Roll call/Quorum 

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted email/written form): 
The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter 
raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments 
by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not be limited 
based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing messages to the Board 
office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, June 11, 2024, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record 
during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included 
in the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual, the 
Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada 
State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. 

*3. President’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Request to remove agenda item(s) (For Possible Action)

*b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action) 

*4. Secretary – Treasurer’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Approval/Rejection of Minutes (For Possible Action) 

(1) Board Meeting – 5/1/2024

*5. General Counsel’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

a. Legal Actions/Litigation Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

b. Regulatory Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

c. Review Panel – NRS 631.3635 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Discussion and Consideration of Proposed Findings and Recommendations for Matters
that have Been Recommended for Remand by the Review Panel, and Possible
Approval/Rejection of Same by the Board – NRS 631.3635

(i) Review Panel 1
(ii) Review Panel 2
(iii) Review Panel 3

*d. Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330

(1) Phong Tran Cao, DDS

(2) Tatevik Pilosyan, DDS

(3) Edilberto DeAndrade, DDS

mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov


*6. New Business: (For Possible Action) 

  *a. Approval Rejection of Voluntary Surrender of License – NAC 631.160; NRS 631.190 
    (For Possible Action) 

(1) Margaret K. Pinson, RDH

*b. Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Proposal to Retain Littler Mendelson, P.C,
regarding EEOC Complaint by Former Employee- NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

*c. Selection/Appointment/Re-assignment of Members to Review Panels – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

*d. CSG Presentation on Dentist/Dental Hygienist Interstate Compacts
   (For Informational Purposes Only) 

*e. Consideration, Review, and Possible Endorsement of Dentist/Dental Hygienist Interstate Compact 
  NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

*7. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment period is for any matter that is within 
the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been 
specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, 
place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her 
discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing messages to the Board 
office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, June 11, 2024, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record 
during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in 
the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual, the Chair 
may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board 
of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of speakers.  

*8. Announcements 

 *9. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 
PUBLIC NOTICE POSTING LOCATIONS 

Office of the NSBDE 2651 N GREEN VALLEY PKWY, Ste 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners Website: www.dental.nv.gov 

Nevada Public Posting Website: www.notice.nv.gov

mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
http://www.dental.nv.gov/
http://www.notice.nv.gov/


Agenda Item 4(a)(1): 

Approval/Rejection on Minutes

Board Meeting
5-1-24



Agenda Item 5(c): 

Review Panel - NRS 631.3635



NRS 631.3635  Appointment of panel to review investigation or informal hearing; members; 
requirements of review; findings and recommendation. 

1. The Board shall appoint a panel to review an investigation or informal hearing conducted 
pursuant to NRS 631.363. Such a panel must consist of: 

(a) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice 
dental hygiene, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry, 
one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dental hygiene and one 
holder of a license to practice dental hygiene who is not a member of the Board and is not 
the subject of the investigation or informal hearing. 

(b) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice 
dentistry or any other person not described in paragraph (a), one member of the Board 
who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry, one member of the Board who is a holder 
of a license to practice dental hygiene and one holder of a license to practice dentistry who 
is not a member of the Board and is not the subject of the investigation or informal hearing. 

2. A review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 shall, in conducting a review of an 
investigation or informal hearing conducted pursuant to NRS 631.363, review and consider, 
without limitation: 

(a) All files and records collected or produced by the investigator; 

(b) Any written findings of fact and conclusions prepared by the investigator; and 

(c) Any other information deemed necessary by the review panel. 

3. The investigator who conducted the investigation or informal hearing pursuant to NRS 
631.363 shall not participate in a review conducted pursuant to subsection 1. 

4. Before the Board takes any action or makes any disposition relating to a complaint, the review 
panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 to conduct a review of the investigation or informal 
hearing relating to the complaint shall present to the Board its findings and recommendation 
relating to the investigation or informal hearing, and the Board shall review and consider those 
findings and recommendations. 

5. Meetings held by a review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 are not subject to the 
provisions of chapter 241 of NRS. 

(Added to NRS by 2017, 988) 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/NRS-241.html#NRS241
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page988


Agenda Item 5(c)(1):

Discussion and consideration of proposed findings and 
recommendations for matters that have been 

recommended for remand by the Review Panel, and 
possible approval/rejection of same by the Board 

 NRS 631.3635



Agenda Item 5(c)(1)(i): 

Review Panel 1



Agenda Item 5(c)(1)(ii): 

Review Panel 2



Agenda Item 5(c)(1)(iii): 

Review Panel 3

Bridget Greene
Cross-Out



Agenda Item 5(d):

Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection 
of Stipulation Agreements 

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330 



NRS 631.3635  Appointment of panel to review investigation or informal hearing; members; 

requirements of review; findings and recommendation. 

      1.  The Board shall appoint a panel to review an investigation or informal hearing conducted 

pursuant to NRS 631.363. Such a panel must consist of: 

      (a) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice 

dental hygiene, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry, one 

member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dental hygiene and one holder of a 

license to practice dental hygiene who is not a member of the Board and is not the subject of the 

investigation or informal hearing. 

      (b) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice 

dentistry or any other person not described in paragraph (a), one member of the Board who is a 

holder of a license to practice dentistry, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to 

practice dental hygiene and one holder of a license to practice dentistry who is not a member of 

the Board and is not the subject of the investigation or informal hearing. 

      2.  A review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 shall, in conducting a review of an 

investigation or informal hearing conducted pursuant to NRS 631.363, review and consider, 

without limitation: 

      (a) All files and records collected or produced by the investigator; 

      (b) Any written findings of fact and conclusions prepared by the investigator; and 

      (c) Any other information deemed necessary by the review panel. 

      3.  The investigator who conducted the investigation or informal hearing pursuant to NRS 

631.363 shall not participate in a review conducted pursuant to subsection 1. 

      4.  Before the Board takes any action or makes any disposition relating to a complaint, the 

review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 to conduct a review of the investigation or 

informal hearing relating to the complaint shall present to the Board its findings and 

recommendation relating to the investigation or informal hearing, and the Board shall review and 

consider those findings and recommendations. 

      5.  Meetings held by a review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 are not subject to the 

provisions of chapter 241 of NRS. 

      (Added to NRS by 2017, 988) 

  

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html#NRS241
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page988


NRS 622A.170  Informal dispositions; consent and settlement agreements; designation of 

hearing panels. 

      1.  The provisions of this chapter do not affect or limit the authority of a regulatory body, at 

any stage of a contested case, to make an informal disposition of the contested case pursuant to 

subsection 5 of NRS 233B.121 or to enter into a consent or settlement agreement approved by 

the regulatory body pursuant to NRS 622.330. 

      2.  The provisions of this chapter do not affect or limit the authority of a regulatory body to 

designate a panel of its members to hear a contested case pursuant to this chapter. 

      (Added to NRS by 2005, 744) 

  

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233BSec121
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-622.html#NRS622Sec330
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/73rd/Stats200508.html#Stats200508page744


NRS 622.330  Consent and settlement agreements: Conditions for entry; deemed public 

records; exceptions. 

      1.  Except as otherwise provided in this section, a regulatory body may not enter into a 

consent or settlement agreement with a person who has allegedly committed a violation of any 

provision of this title which the regulatory body has the authority to enforce, any regulation 

adopted pursuant thereto or any order of the regulatory body, unless the regulatory body 

discusses and approves the terms of the agreement in a public meeting. 

      2.  A regulatory body that consists of one natural person may enter into a consent or 

settlement agreement without complying with the provisions of subsection 1 if: 

      (a) The regulatory body posts notice in accordance with the requirements for notice for a 

meeting held pursuant to chapter 241 of NRS and the notice states that: 

             (1) The regulatory body intends to resolve the alleged violation by entering into a 

consent or settlement agreement with the person who allegedly committed the violation; and 

             (2) For the limited time set forth in the notice, any person may request that the 

regulatory body conduct a public meeting to discuss the terms of the consent or settlement 

agreement by submitting a written request for such a meeting to the regulatory body within the 

time prescribed in the notice; and 

      (b) At the expiration of the time prescribed in the notice, the regulatory body has not 

received any requests for a public meeting regarding the consent or settlement agreement. 

      3.  If a regulatory body enters into a consent or settlement agreement that is subject to the 

provisions of this section, the agreement is a public record. 

      4.  The provisions of this section do not apply to a consent or settlement agreement between 

a regulatory body and a licensee that provides for the licensee to enter a diversionary program for 

the treatment of an alcohol or other substance use disorder. 

      (Added to NRS by 2003, 3417) 

 

 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html#NRS241
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/72nd/Stats200327.html#Stats200327page3417


Agenda Item 5(d)(1): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements  

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330

Phong Tran Cao, DDS



Agenda Item 5(d)(2): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements  

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330

Tatevik Pilosyan, DDS



Agenda Item 5(d)(3): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements  

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330

Edilberto DeAndrade, DDS



Agenda Item 6:

New Business: 
(For Possible Action) 



Agenda Item 6(a):

Approval/Rejection of 
Voluntary Surrender of License  

NAC 631.160; NRS 631.190
 (For Possible Action)



     NAC 631.160  Voluntary surrender of license. (NRS 631.190) 

     1.  If a licensee desires voluntarily to surrender his or her license, he or she may submit to 

the Board a sworn written surrender of the license accompanied by delivery to the Board of the 

certificate of registration previously issued to him or her. The Board may accept or reject the 

surrender of the license. If the Board accepts the surrender of the license, the surrender is 

absolute and irrevocable. The Board will notify any agency or person of the surrender as it 

deems appropriate. 

     2.  The voluntary surrender of a license does not preclude the Board from hearing a 

complaint for disciplinary action filed against the licensee. 

     [Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, § XX, eff. 7-21-82] 

 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190


Agenda Item 6(a)(1):

Approval/Rejection of 
Voluntary Surrender of License  

NAC 631.160; NRS 631.190
 (For Possible Action)

Margaret K Pinson, RDH

Bridget Greene
Inserted Text
(1)





Agenda Item 6(b): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/
Rejection of Proposal to Retain Littler Mendelson, PC 

regarding EEOC Complaint by Former Employee
NRS 631.190

  (For Possible Action)



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

      1.  Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter. 

      2.  Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents, 

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

      3.  Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to 

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

      4.  Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

      5.  Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter. 

      6.  Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this 

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

      7.  Have and use a common seal. 

      8.  Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board. 

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

      9.  Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the 

provisions of this chapter. 

      10.  Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories. 

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


Agenda Item 6(c): 

Selection/Appointment/Re-Assignment of Members to 
Review Panels NRS 631.190

 (For Possible Action)



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

      1.  Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter. 

      2.  Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents, 

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

      3.  Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to 

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

      4.  Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

      5.  Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter. 

      6.  Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this 

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

      7.  Have and use a common seal. 

      8.  Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board. 

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

      9.  Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the 

provisions of this chapter. 

      10.  Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories. 

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


Agenda Item 6(d): 

CSG Presentation on Dentist/Dental Hygienist 
Interstate Compacts 

 (For Informational Purposes Only)



 

 

DDH Compact Implementation Timeline 
On April 22, 2024, the Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact (DDH Compact) was enacted in its 
seventh state. The compact legislation specifies that it will come into effect upon enactment of its 
seventh state. See the DDH Compact Map for an updated list of participating states. Although the 
compact has been enacted by seven states, applications for compact privileges are not yet 
available. Below is a timeline of implementation activities that must take place before the compact 
can be used by dentists and dental hygienists. The compact will not be fully operational for an 
estimated 18-24 months.     

April 22, 2024 – DDH Compact enacted in 7th state.  

The DDH Compact legislation specifies it is effective upon the enactment of the 7th state.  

Summer 2024 - Formation of Compact Commission 

Each member state must appoint a one representative to serve on the compact commission. The 
commissioner is selected by the state’s dental licensing board. The compact specifies that the 
commissioner must be a representative of the state licensing board.  

Fall 2024 – Inaugural Commission Meeting 

The state commissioners will convene for the inaugural meeting of the DDH Compact Commission 
where they will elect an executive committee, vote on initial rules and bylaws, and take other steps 
for the compact to move towards being fully operational. Commission meetings will be open to the 
public.  

2025 Ongoing – Creation of Compact Data System 

The compact commission will continue to work on operationalizing the compact by acquiring a data 
system. The data system is a foundational piece of compact operations. Compact member states 
communicate licensure and compact privilege information via the data system. It is expected that the 
data system process will take 10-12 months. Once the data system is available, states will be tasked 
with onboarding to the system. States will have varying timelines to onboard.  

2025 Ongoing – Additional Commission Meetings 

The compact commission will hold commission meetings throughout 2025 for additional rulemaking. 
The commission will also hire staff, develop a budget, approve a fee structure, select a secretariat 
organization and take additional steps for the compact to be fully operational. 

Privilege Applications Open 

Once the data system is up and running and an application process is established, the compact 
commission will open applications for compact privileges to dentists and dental hygienists.  

The application process will involve verifying the dental professional has a qualifying license and is 
eligible for compact participation. Once the application has been reviewed, the applicant will receive 
confirmation that they have been issued compact privileges in the member state(s) they selected. 
After a privilege is issued, the dentist or dental hygienist can practice in those member states in 
which they hold a privilege.  

https://ddhcompact.org/compact-map/


 
 
 
   

Effect and Benefits 
This project is funded by the Department of Defense  

Effect  
There are approximately 200,000 licensed dentists and approximately 215,000 licensed dental 
hygienists in the United States. Licensees are limited to providing care within state borders. The 
Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact seeks to provide licensees with opportunities for 
multistate practice and increase mobility for individuals who are relocating, improve public safety 
and promote workforce development by reducing unnecessary licensure burdens.  
 
Benefits for Practitioners  

• Facilitates mobility for licensees.  
• Expands employment opportunities into new markets.  
• Eases the burden of applying for and maintaining multiple licenses.  
• Supports relocating military spouses and families.  
• Improves continuity of care.  

Benefits for State Dentistry Licensing Authorities  
• Reduces administrative burden.  
• Creates a compact information system that supports the facilitation of licensure 
and discipline information for dentists and dental hygienists.  
• Expands cooperation among state licensure boards on investigations and 
disputes.  
• Allows regulators to retain jurisdiction over licensees practicing in their state.  

Benefits for the State  
• Promotes workforce development and strengthens labor markets.  
• Expands consumer access to highly qualified practitioners.   
• Enhances public safety through a shared interstate data system of licensure and 
disciplinary information, allowing for rapid verification of licensure status and 
cooperation among states.  
• Preserves state sovereignty.  

 



 
 
 
   

Development Process 
This project was funded by the Department of Defense 

The Department of Defense has sought to support the development of interstate 
compacts as a mechanism for ensuring the professional licenses of military spouses are easily 
portable. In September 2020, the Department of Defense entered into a cooperative agreement 
with The Council of State Governments to fund the creation of new interstate compacts 
designed to strengthen occupational licensing portability. In collaboration with the Department of 
Defense, CSG developed and administered a competitive application process to select the 
professions for initial compact development. Eligible applicants included associations of 
professionals, associations or federations of state licensing boards, coalitions of state licensing 
boards and national credentialing bodies for professions licensed in at least 30 states.    

In 2021, the Department of Defense and CSG announced that the American Dental 
Association (ADA) and the American Dental Hygienist Association (ADHA) were both successful 
applicants. CSG, ADA, and ADHA then transitioned into drafting the model compact legislation. 
To develop recommendations guiding the drafting of the Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact, 
CSG, ADHA and ADA brought together a Technical Assistance Group made up of state board 
members, board administrators, members of professional associations, licensed dentists and 
dental hygienists and other stakeholders. The group met over the course of several months to 
determine the needs of the profession and the compact model, dentist and dental hygienist 
mobility patterns, and current licensure systems.  

Technical Assistance Group Members: 
Ann Lynch, American Dental Hygienists' Association 
Dr. Anthony Ziebert, American Dental Association 
Dr. Ariana Terlet, Drs. Terlet & Aziz   
Dr. Arthur Hickham Jr., Louisiana State Board of Dentistry 
Betty Kabel, North Florida Medical Center 
Bridgett Anderson, Minnesota Board of Dentistry  
Carmen I. Negron-Dupee   
Catherine Cabanzon   
Charlene A. Meagher, Washington Dental Hygiene   
Dr. Christine Hammer, Kidz Place Dentistry   
Colton Cannon, American Student Dental Association 
Dr. David L. Carsten, Washington Dental Quality Assurance Commission 
Dr. David L. Nielson, Alaska Board of Dental Examiners 
Dr. Debra A. Woo, University of the Pacific, Dugoni School of Dentistry 
Dr. Denise Claiborne, Old Dominion University 
Doug Wolfbeg, Page, Wolfberg & Wirth, LLC 
Jill Stueker, Iowa Dental Board 
Karen Hart, American Dental Association 



 
 
 
   

Fact vs. Fiction 
Fiction: The compact is establishing a national license for dentistry and dental hygiene. 

Fact: The Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact does not establish a national license. It 
establishes an optional, additional pathway for practitioners to practice in states where they do 
not hold a license. The dentist or dental hygienist must apply for a compact privilege in each 
state where they wish to practice. Compact privilege eligibility is not automatic. States retain 
control over who they license and scope of practice.  

Fiction: The compact will authorize foreign trained dentists to practice via a compact 
privilege.  

Fact: Section 4 of the compact states that to be eligible for a compact privilege a dentist must 
have graduated from a CODA accredited pre-doctoral dental education program. Earning a 
post-doctoral specialty degree or completing a residency program at a CODA accredited 
institution does not meet this requirement.  

Fiction: The compact commission will be approving alternative forms of dentistry and 
dental hygiene education. 

Fact: Section 3 of the compact says that states must accept for licensure that dentists and 
dental hygienists have graduated from programs accredited by CODA or an accrediting agency 
approved by the United State Department of Education for the accreditation of dental and dental 
hygiene education programs.  

This does not authorize the commission to approve alternative forms of education such as 
apprenticeships or foreign training. Allowing for the designation of another accrediting body as 
approved education for the purposes of issuing compact privileges, protects the compact 
against becoming obsolete should CODA no longer be the prevailing accrediting body of dental 
and dental hygiene education programs.  

Fiction: The compact commission is a third-party non-government organization run by 
CSG and ADA. 

Fact: As established in section 7 of the compact, the commission is the governing body made 
up of the participating states who have joined the compact. This is a supra-state, sub-federal 
government entity that serves as an instrumentality of the collective member states. The 
commission’s delegates will be representatives from each state’s licensing board. CSG, ADA, 
nor any outside organization have any role on the commission.  

Fiction: My state is delegating regulatory authority over to the commission.   



Fact: States have full authority over their own licensing laws and how they license dentists and 
dental hygienists. By joining the compact, states agree to accept dentists and dental hygienists 
who are licensed in other compact states and have received a privilege to practice in their state 
under the compact. States continue to determine licensing requirements and scope of practice 
for themselves.  

Fiction: The compact is promoting the DLOSCE. 

Fact: The compact intentionally defines clinical assessment broadly as to encompass all paths 
to licensure currently allowed in states. To be eligible for the compact, a practitioner must 
successfully complete a clinical assessment. This includes the DLOSCE but also could be 
satisfied by the ADEX exam, PGY1 and other clinical assessment pathways to licensure. To join 
the compact, a state must accept practitioners from other states that may not have identical 
clinical assessment requirements.  

Fiction: The Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact works like the Interstate Medical 
Licensure Compact (IMLC). 

Fact: The Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact employs a compact privilege model of 
multistate practice whereby practitioners obtain compact privileges to work in remote states. 
Member states are agreeing to mutually recognize each others’ licenses so that a practitioner 
can practice in another member state without needing a license there.  

The IMLC employs an expedited licensure model of multistate practice whereby the compact 
commission is getting the practitioner licensed in every state where they want to practice in an 
expedited manor.  

The two models differ significantly and interested parties should avoid assumptions that the 
Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact is based on the IMLC.  

Fiction: The compact is a backdoor attempt for the ADA to control licensing. 

Fact: The Department of Defense selected the ADA and ADHA to participate with CSG in the 
development of the Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact. The ADA continues to partner with 
CSG on state enactment of the compact. The ADA has no role on the commission nor any 
control over the administration or governance of the compact.  

Fiction: Bad actors will be able to use the compact. 

Fact: The compact requires a background check which protects against bad actors entering into 
the system. Once a licensee is deemed eligible to obtain compact privileges, states can take a 
disciplinary action against a compact privilege holder just as if that person held a license in the 
state. If an action is taken, that action is communicated quickly to all the member states via the 
compact data system and the action then applies across all compact privileges that a 
practitioner holds. These safeguards protect against a scenario where a bad actor could run 
from state to state undetected. 

Fiction: We don’t need the compact because we have already addressed the military 
spouse issue. 



Fact:  DoD prefers interstate compacts as a long-term solution for spouses. They like the 
regulatory certainty that a compact provides. The compact covers all licensees, not only military 
spouses. The compact creates two-way reciprocity. Current endorsement laws might help 
spouses moving to your state, but they don’t provide value for current residents who wish to 
work in multiple jurisdictions or change residence. Licensees are still needing to re-test in some 
instances, provide transcripts, wait on the application to be processed. All of that is costly and 
time out of the workforce. 

 



Dr. Kelley Ryals, Santa Fe Modern Dentistry and Orthodontics  
Dr. Kumar Subramanian, Ohio State Dental Board 
Dr. Lindsey Yates, University of Colorado School of Dental Medicine 
Matt Crespin, Past President American Dental Hygienists’ Association   
Dr. Meaghan Strotman, American Dental Association 
Ryan Edmonson, Arizona State Board of Dental Examiners 
Stephanie Lotridge, Idaho Board of Dentistry  
Dr. Stephen Lepowsky, University of Connecticut School of Dental Medicine 
Dr. Tanya Sue Maestas 

A separate drafting team transitioned the recommendations and model from the 
Technical Assistance Group into a full draft of the Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact model 
legislation.    

Document Team Group Members: 
Ann Lynch, American Dental Hygienists’ Association 
Dr. Anthony Ziebert, American Dental Association 
Bill Kellington, Office of Legal Services, Washington Department of Health  
Bobby White, North Carolina Dental Board of Dental Examiners 
Bridgett Anderson, Minnesota Board of Dentistry 
Karen Hart, American Dental Association 
Ken Brody, Page, Wolfberg & Wirth, LLC 
Matt Crespin, American Dental Hygienists’ Association 
Dr. Meaghan Strotman, American Dental Association 
 

To feedback on the draft legislation, CSG managed a public comment period during the 
fall of 2022. This included virtual educational presentations where CSG explained the draft 
legislation and answered questions. CSG, ADA and ADHA also attended several conferences 
and convenings to present the compact to interested stakeholder groups. Lastly, CSG hosted a 
website with the draft legislation, informational materials, and a survey for the public to submit 
feedback. After gathering responses, CSG reconvened the drafting team and Technical 
Assistance Group to discuss and make changes, leading to a final draft.  

  

 



 
 
 
   

Summary of Key Provisions 
This project was funded by the Department of Defense 

 
Section 1: Title and Purpose 
The purposes of this Compact are to facilitate the interstate practice of dentistry and 
dental hygiene and improve public access to dentistry and dental hygiene services by 
providing dentists and dental hygienists licensed in a participating state the ability to 
practice in participating states in which they are not licensed.   
 
This Compact is designed to achieve the following objectives: 

• Enhance states’ abilities to protect the public’s health and safety 
• Facilitate the exchange of licensure, investigative and disciplinary information 

among member states 
• Requires practitioners to practice within the scope of practice authorized by the 

state in which they are practicing 
• Support active-duty military personnel and their spouses 
• Encourage the cooperation of member states in regulating multistate practice for 

licensed dentists and dental hygienists 
• Create a streamlined pathway for licensees to practice in participating states 

increasing the mobility of duly licensed dentists and dental hygienists 
• Increase public access to dentistry services 

 
 
Section 2: Definitions 
This section establishes the definitions of key terms and concepts as used throughout 
the compact. Defined terms are capitalized throughout the document. The Dentist and 
Dental Hygienist Compact uses the term “Compact Privilege” to describe a licensee’s 
permission to work in a remote state. 
 
Section 3: State Participation in the Compact 
This section establishes the requirements for states to be eligible to participate in the 
compact, and what is required of participating states to continue to maintain eligibility.  
 
To be eligible to participate in the compact a participating state must: 

• Accept the National Board Examinations of the Joint Commission on National 
Dental Examinations  

• Accept for licensure that applicants for a dentist license graduate from a 
predoctoral dental education program accredited by the Commission on Dental 



Accreditation and that applicants for a dental hygienist license graduate from a 
dental hygiene education program accredited by the Commission on Dental 
Accreditation  

• Require for licensure that applicants successfully complete a clinical assessment 
• Have continuing professional development requirements 
• Have a mechanism to receive and investigate complaints about Licensees 

practicing in that state 
• Enact a compact that is not materially different from the model compact 
• Participate fully in the compact data system 
• Notify the compact commission of any adverse action or the availability of 

significant investigative information regarding a licensee or applicant 
• Implement procedures for requiring the background check of applicants for a 

privilege to practice 
• Comply with the rules of the commission, the governing body of the compact 
• Accept licensees from other participating states as established by the compact 

 

Section 4: Compact Privilege 
This section describes the requirements for a dentist or dental hygienist to obtain a 
compact privilege to practice in remote states.  
 
To obtain and exercise a compact privilege under the compact a licensed dentist or 
dental hygienist must: 

• Hold a qualifying license1 in a participating state 
• Have passed a National Board Examination of the Joint Commission on National 

Dental Examinations  
• Have graduated from a predoctoral dental education program accredited by 

CODA, leading to a D.D.S. or D.M.D. degree (for dentists) 
• Have graduated from a dental hygiene education program accredited by CODA 

(for dental hygienists) 
• Have successfully completed a clinical assessment 
• Have not been convicted or found guilty, or have entered into an agreed 

disposition, of a felony offense under applicable state or federal criminal law, 
within five (5) years prior to the date of their application; 

• Apply to the commission through the participating state where the licensee holds 
a qualifying license 

• Pay any applicable fees 
• Meet any jurisprudence requirements established by the remote state in which 

the licensee is seeking a compact privilege 
• Report to the commission any adverse action taken by any non-participating 

state 

1 The compact defines Qualifying License as an active, unencumbered license issued by a participating 
state.  



• Report to the commission the licensee’s primary address and any change in 
address  

 
Section 5: Active-Duty Military Personnel or their Spouses 
This section specifies that active-duty military members and their spouse shall not be 
required to pay the commission fee for a compact privilege. If a remote state chooses to 
charge a fee for a compact privilege, it may choose to charge a reduced fee or no fee to 
active-duty military and their spouses.  
 
Section 6: Adverse Actions 
This section establishes a disciplinary framework between the compact participating 
states. Remote states may take adverse action against a licensee’s compact privilege in 
that state and may issue enforceable subpoenas for witnesses and evidence from other 
participating states.  
 
Participating states must report any adverse action and the existence of significant 
investigative information to the compact data system, which then promptly alerts the 
other participating states of this information. Any participating state may take adverse 
action based on the factual findings of a remote state. This section also directs the 
compact participating states to work together on joint investigative activities related to 
licensees using the compact.  
 
Section 7: Establishment and Operation of the Commission 
This section outlines the composition and powers of the compact commission. 
• Each participating state is entitled to one delegate 
• The Commissioner will be a member or designee of the State Licensing Authority 
• Each delegate has one vote on commission rules and bylaws 
• The commission may establish a term of office, code of ethics, bylaws, rules, a 
budget and financial records in order to carry out the compact. 
 
Section 8: Data System 
This section establishes the commission’s shared information system. Participating 
states are required to share licensing information on practitioners with compact 
privileges. Participating states will submit a uniform dataset to the data system on all 
practitioners to whom this compact is applicable as required by the rules of the 
commission. This database will allow for the expedited sharing of disciplinary and 
investigative information. 
 



Adverse action information pertaining to a licensee in any participating state will only be 
available to other participating states. A participating state may designate information 
submitted to the data system that may not be shared with the public without the express 
permission of that participating state. 
 
Section 9: Rulemaking 
This section establishes the rulemaking authority of the commission to carry out the 
provisions of the compact.  
• Rules carry the force of law in all participating states. 
• A simple majority of participating state legislatures may veto a rule of the 
commission. 
• Changes to rules require a 30-day notice of proposed rulemaking, with an 
opportunity for a public hearing. 
• If the commission takes an action that is beyond the scope of the compact, the 
action is invalid and has no force and effect. 
 
Section 10: Oversight, Dispute Resolution and Enforcement 
This section ensures compliance with the compact by member states and details the 
procedures to be followed in the event a participating state fails to comply with the 
compact. 

• A period of technical assistance in remedying the situation. 
• Dispute resolution, including mediation and binding processes. 
• Termination from the compact if no other means of compliance is successful. 
• The commission shall attempt to resolve any compact-related disputes that may 

arise between states. 
 
Section 11: Effective Date, Withdrawal and Amendment 
This section establishes the effective date of the compact and includes provisions for 
states withdrawing from the compact and the member states collectively amending the 
compact.  

• The compact takes effect on the date of enactment by the seventh state.  
• States that join after this date are subject to the rules of the commission as they 

exist on the date when the compact becomes law in that state. 
• Participating states may enact a law to repeal their membership in the compact. 

A state’s withdrawal takes effect 180 days after enactment of such law. 
 
Section 12: Construction and Severability 
The compact is to be liberally construed to effectuate its purposes.  
The compact’s provisions are severable, meaning that: 

• If a provision is declared to conflict with the United States Constitution, all other 
provisions remain valid for all participating states. 



• If a provision is held contrary to a participating state’s constitution, the compact 
retains its full force in all other states, and all other provisions remain valid in the 
affected state. 

 
Section 13: Consistent Effect and Conflict with Other State Laws 
Participating states retain sovereignty over all laws, and nothing shall inhibit or prohibit 
enforcement of laws that are not in conflict with the compact. Any laws, statutes, 
regulations or other legal requirements in a member state that conflict with the compact 
are superseded to the extent of the conflict. 



Agenda Item 6(e): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible Endorsement of 
Dentist/Dental Hygienist Interstate Compact 

NRS 631.190 
(For Possible Action)



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

      1.  Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter. 

      2.  Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents, 

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

      3.  Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to 

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

      4.  Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

      5.  Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter. 

      6.  Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this 

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

      7.  Have and use a common seal. 

      8.  Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board. 

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

      9.  Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the 

provisions of this chapter. 

      10.  Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories. 

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


Persons with Compact 
Privilege apply for 

licenses through a portal 
to each jurisdiction, 
keeping boards in 
control of who can 

practice in their state and 
holding each licensee 

accountable to local rules 
and regulations.

 Minimum competency 
standards include a 

demonstration of hand-
skills, or 5-years in 

practice with a license 
in good standing in any/

all jurisdictions where 
currently permitted to do 

so.

Through the utilization 
of the existing, AADB 

Clearing house of 
discipline & actions, 

boards have access to 
a complete log of any 

board action or discipline 
in every Member State, 

preserving transparency 
and a quality workforce.

Licenses Standards Discipline

The AADB Compact legislation ensures states maintain governing independence 
by ensuring that all rule making, the issuance of licenses and disciplinary actions 
remain within the power of each jurisdictions’ board or existing authority. The 
AADB Compact Commission serves to represent stakeholders in licensure not to 
intervene.
 

The AADB Dental and Dental Hygiene Licensure Compact protects the public in three 
different ways: 

The AADB Dental and Dental 
Hygiene Licensure Compact: 
Streamling Licensure Without Compromise

AADB DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE LICENSURE COMPACT

How?Keeps states independentKeeps states independent

How?Protects the publicProtects the public



Understanding that all persons issued a Compact License will qualify to practice in any 
Compact Member State, the AADB Compact Commission reviewed the initial licensure 
requirements of all 35 member boards of dentistry to establish uniform licensure 
requirements. These requirements pertain to education, disciplinary action, and 
competency to practice.

To receive a Compact Privlige a licensee must:
• Graduate from a CODA-approved dental school.
• Pass the American Board of Dental Examiners, (ADEX) licensure exam, or be in practice 5 years 

having passed a regional licensing examination.
• Pass the written National Dental Board Exam administered by the Joint Commission on 

National Dental Examinations
• Be free of disciplinary actions as defined by the Compact Commission

By 2022, all AADB member boards, and 48 out of 50 US States accepted or required the 
ADEX licensure examination as the gold standard for establishing readiness to practice. 
The ADEX exam, administered in every US dental school, is the only examination 
incorporating both hand-skills and cognitive assessment components to ensure 
potential licensees can perform dentistry without harm to the public. Commissioners 
evaluating these state requirements determined non-skills based examinations do not 
ensure competency to practice as defined by the majority of US jurisdictions and should 
not be permitted as a uniform licensure component.

Uniform StandardsUniform Standards

how to update your planned legislation 
to better protect patients, your state and your board. Ask Us

How?

Promoting 
portability

Protecting the 
public

Streamlining 
licensure

Who can participate in the AADB Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact?Who can participate in the AADB Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact?



AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF DENTAL BOARDS
DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE LICENSURE COMPACT

WWW.AADBCOMPACT.ORG                                         |                           INFO@AADBDENTALBOARDS.ORG

of the CSG/ADA Compact
What would happen if the CSG/ADA Compact became reality?

Negative Impacts 

 › The CSG Compact will lower the 
licensure standards of 44 of 53 US 
jurisdictions. 

The CSG Model Legislation will allow 
untested dentists and dental hygienists to 
practice(1).  The requirement of a “clinical 
assessment” as defined by the CSG 
does not require any testing of licensure 
candidates, merely an undefined “process.” 
Currently, nearly every US state requires an 
independent hand-skills examination as one 
component in its requirements for licensure. 

ADEX examination failures from select 
documented PG-Y1 licensed candidates 
shown here(2). 

Clearly, hand-skills examinations protect 
the public from harm as unqualified 
professionals are not licensed. 

 › Public health will be increasingly 
endangered if the quality of 
professionals diminishes.

The CSG Compact will allow unvetted 
practitioners to become licensed and move 
around more freely. It isn’t unreasonable to 
expect poorly-skilled dentists and dental 
hygienists to choose to become licensed in 
a state that does not require a hand-skills 

Teeth perforated during 
root canal exam

Gum damage during 
dental hygiene scaling 
examination

Damage to adjacent teeth during 
crown & bridge examination



1. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §3B, §3D (2023).; 2. Images courtesy The American Board of Dental Examiners, ADEX 
Subject to all applicable copyright laws, not for duplication.; 3. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §2G (2023).

exam then, with Compact Privilege, practice 
in a CSG Remote State without a license 
direct from and outside of the jurisdiction of 
that state’s board.

As the numbers of these untested persons 
in practice grows, more and more patients 
will be treated by lesser and lesser regulated 
providers. Public health is in jeopardy. 

 › States won’t know who is practicing 
dentistry in their jurisdiction, or have 
authority over Compact Privilege 
holders.

State statutes restrict a board’s jurisdiction 
to those persons to whom a license is issued. 
Member (Remote) States do not issue 
licenses. Instead, CSG Compact Privilege 
alone is an authorization to practice(3). 

Despite the language outlined in the CSG 
Compact Legislation, stating that boards 
retain authority over Compact Privilege 
holders, statutes simply don’t allow it. Boards 
may not know who is performing dentistry in 
their state, nor will they have authority over 
them.

As explained in the CSG FAQ’s, local 
licensure is only required for specialists. 
Additionally, providers are not required to 
maintain a license where they live.

 › Access to care is hurt, not helped by the 
CSG compact. 

The Council of State Governments claims 
access to care will be improved with their 
compact. But will it really? Institutions 
graduate a set number of qualified dental 
professionals annually. The pool of licensed 
professionals will not increase because a 
compact exists.  

Instead, the CSG compact may entice dental 
practitioners to practice elsewhere. Unlike 
the Interstate Medical Licensure Compact 
on which the AADB Dental and Dental 
Hygiene Licensure Compact was modeled, 
the CSG’s compact does not establish a 
home-state principle.  It also does not 
require providers to be licensed in their state 
of residency. 

Providers can be expected to manipulate 
Compact Privilege to skirt established 
rules and regulations, thus shifting the 
workforce into and out of states and cities 
nationwide where quality care is needed (for 
employment opportunities).

What would happen if the CSG/ADA Compact became reality?

how to update your planned 
legislation to 

better protect patients, your state 
and your board. 

Ask Us



1. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §7C3, 9B, 9K 10J2, 13B (2023); 2. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legis-
lation §7E3 (2023); 3. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §6C, 8B, 8G (2023).

The appeal of a licensure compact
Healthcare license compacts are a benefit for both patients 

and professionals, as long as they offer the highest standard 
for license and portability Practitioners benefit with a faster, 
smoother pathway to licensure.

Licensure requirements protect the public from 
practitioners who should not be practicing.

The stakeholders in licensure
The main stakeholders in the licensure process are the 

patients. They are the ones at risk if someone receives a license 
who is not qualified. 

Dentists, dental hygienists, students, educators, and others 
are communities of interest but are not harmed if a license is 
given when it should not have been.

Service member benefits
The amendments to the Service Members Civil Relief Act 

(SCRA) in January 2023 added provisions for service members 
and their families, portability for their professional licenses. 
Modern compacts continue to help the military through 
compact fee waivers.

Current healthcare compacts
The Federation of State Medical Boards (FSMB) Medical 

Compact covers 36 jurisdictions and approximately 80% of 
medical practitioners are eligible.  

For healthcare professions, the licensing rubric includes a 
single uniform independent third-party examination, developed 
by an organization of the state regulatory boards, that serves as 
a benchmark standard for licensure.

The The 
DENTAL COMPACTDENTAL COMPACT

1. Rules are promulgated by a simple majority of the member states and have the force of law in the participating states. In effect, an 
unelected commission has quasi-legislative authority in your state(1).

2. The Commission may levy on, and collect an annual assessment from each Participating State and impose fees on Licensees of 
Participating States, in effect, an unelected taxing authority resulting in an unknown fiscal impact(2).

3. Participating states are not required to report all disciplinary issues(3).

4. Independent third-party licensure examinations are not preserved; exams without a hand-skills requirement such as the DLOSCE 
or ADEA Compendium, or a future unknown exam could be recognized and therefore accepted by all compact states.

 • Examinations are neither required or uniform
 • A “Clinical Assessment” may be any exam or process and is not clearly defined and does not require hand-skills
 • If a dental school is recognized as a testing agency or process in a compact state, recognition is required by other 

compact states
 • Requires the majority of states to accept a lowered standard of licensure examination

1. Compact rules would exclusively cover the definition of eligible dentists and dental hygienists and be uniform and clearly defined. 
 • Compact commission simply serves as the clearing house for original source verification and discipline to aid the 

member dental boards and shorten licensure issue times.
 • All other rule making relating to the professions are left to the individual sovereign state.

2. Fees to cover the expenses are not borne by the state dental board but only by the compact licensee, military members and their 
spouses are exempt from fees.

3. States are required to report all disciplinary actions allowing dental boards to access significance independently. Compact 
eligibility requires no history of discipline, controlled substance action or criminal history.

4. Independent third-party licensure examinations are preserved. The ADEX Examination, recognized by 50 of 53 US jurisdictions, 
and owned and developed by US dental boards, provides a uniform standard of performance for all licensure requirements. Sixteen 
states exclusively recognize the ADEX examination.

How the CSG, ADA, ADHA Compact misses the mark

How the AADB Compact, patterned closely after the 
Federation of State Medical Boards (FSMB) Compact, protects the public



AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF DENTAL BOARDS
DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE LICENSURE COMPACT

WWW.AADBCOMPACT.ORG                                         |                           INFO@AADBDENTALBOARDS.ORG

Where the AADB Compact Excels
and the CSG Falls Short

Dental Hygiene Perspective:

 › Commission Representation

The Council of State Governments (CSG) 
Compact states “Participating State shall 
have and be limited to one (1) Commissioner 
selected by that Participating State’s State 
Licensing Authority or, if the State has 
more than one State Licensing Authority, 
selected collectively by the State Licensing 
Authorities(1).”

This is problematic because dental 
hygienists represent only 27% of 
membership on state boards of dentistry(2), 
meaning the likelihood a dental hygienist’s 
perspective will be represented on the 
commission from any jurisdiction, is slim. 

In contrast, the AADB Compact takes Dental 
Hygienists and split boards into account by 
ensuring two (2) representatives from each 
Participating State sit on the established 
Commission (3). 

Today, every hygienist can show they’re 
aptly prepared and well-trained to treat 
patients. That may change.

 › Hand-skills exams are not required

 The CSG Compact only requires a “clinical 
assessment” not a hand-skills examination(4). 

A lack of a clear definition of the 
components of such an assessment means 
that the dental hygienists of the future will 
not be required to perform any scaling 
exercise, periodontal probing measurement, 
or calculus detection to demonstrate 
competency. 

AADB Compact requires a hand-skills 
examination as part of it’s uniform licensure 
requirements to protect the public(5). 

 › Education Programs are undetermined.

The CSG Compact does not require 
graduation from a CODA-accredited 
program, rather permits other accrediting 
agencies recognized by the US Department 
of Education(6).



AADB DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE LICENSURE COMPACT

1. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §3A, §3D (2023).; 2. 33rd Edition Composite Book, AADB (2023).; 3. AADB Dental and 
Dental Hygienist Compact Legislation, §2C, 3B (2023).; 4. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §2D, §4A (2023).; 5. AADB Dental 

and Dental Hygienist Compact Legislation, §2D, 2Q (2023).; 6. Dental and Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §3A (2023).; 7. Dental and 
Dental Hygienist Compact, Model Legislation §7E (2023).

To simplify applications with uniform 
requirements and ensure dental hygienist 
continue to provide the highest standards 
of care to patients, the AADB Compact 
requires licensees to have graduated 
from CODA-approved programs.

 › Cost

The CSG Compact clearly states, “The 
Commission may levy on and collect an 
annual assessment from each Participating
State and impose fees on Licensees of 
Participating States when a Compact 
Privilege is granted, to cover the cost of the 
operations and activities of the Commission 
and its staff, which must be in a total 
amount sufficient to cover its annual budget 
as approved each fiscal year for which 
sufficient revenue is not provided by other 
sources (7).”

That’s two different fees of an undetermined 
amount states will pay just to participate. 
Costs to obtain Compact Privilege are also 
undetermined at this time. 

States and boards cannot tolerate additional 
financial burdens. The AADB understands 
most of these costs will likely filter to dental 
hygienists as they apply for licensure. The 
AADB Compact will not charge jurisdictions 
to become Member States.  

how to update your planned 
legislation 

to better protect patients, your 
state and your board.

Ask Us

A well-designed compact 
should equally bring all 

competent professionals 
licensure portability with 

fewer burdens.



AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF DENTAL BOARDS
DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE LICENSURE COMPACT

WWW.AADBCOMPACT.ORG                                         |                           INFO@AADBDENTALBOARDS.ORG

YOUR needs?
A licensure compact could address many of the needs of the dental healthcare community. 
With two pieces of legislation to consider, which meets

how to update your planned legislation 
to better protect patients, your state and your board. Ask Us



The North Carolina State Board of Dental Examiners 

Posi on Statement 

On 

Selec on of a Den st and Dental Hygienist Compact 

 
Currently two different Den st and Dental Hygienist licensing compacts are being presented to 
state legislatures throughout the country.  One compact was developed by the Council of State 
Governments, the other by the American Associa on of Dental Boards.   Both agencies seek to 
create an interstate compact that will enhance licensing portability for den sts and dental 
hygienists; especially for those serving in the military and their spouses.  Both also believe that 
receiving a compact license or privilege to prac ce relieves licensees of the burdens of 
maintaining mul ple state licenses.  

While the North Carolina State Board of Dental Examiners (NCSBDE) supports these goals it is 
uncertain as to the necessity of entering a compact to reach them. Neither proposed compact 
produces documentary or survey evidence of the number of den sts and dental hygienists who 
wish to pursue licensing in mul ple states.   It is difficult to recommend support of sweeping, 
long-term, and binding compact legisla on without some idea of the demand for such a 
process.     Also, the General Assembly’s passage of NCGS 93B-15.1 allowing for military 
personnel and their spouses to be licensed by military endorsement, along with amendments to 
the Servicemember Civil Relief Act (SCRA), now allow for members of the military and their 
spouses to be licensed or to prac ce pursuant to military orders within a ma er of days at no 
cost.  It is hard to imagine a compact with less cost and greater efficiency than procedures that 
are already in place at the NCSBDE.  North Carolina has also experienced a significant increase in 
mobility and the number of non-military den sts and hygienists admi ed from other states 
a er the General Assembly removed restric ons previously found in the Creden aling Statute. 
[NCGS 90-36]. This license mobility has occurred under current law and without the need for a 
compact. Notwithstanding these issues, the Dental Board has reviewed both proposed 
compacts very carefully and offers the following observa ons. 

 The proposed compact developed by the Council of State Governments (CSG), generally follows 
the language of previous compacts developed for various professions and North Carolina has 
joined six (6) of these: Nursing, Physical Therapy, Audiology and Speech-Language, Occupa onal 
Therapy, Emergency Medical Services, and Psychology. The other proposed compact has been 
developed by the American Associa on of Dental Boards (AADB) and purports to follow 
compact language developed and implemented by the Federa on of State Medical Boards.   
Both have as their purpose a means to facilitate the interstate prac ce of den stry and dental 



hygiene, to improve access to care, and to protect public health and safety “…through the 
state’s authority to regulate the prac ce of den stry and dental hygiene in the state.” (CSG 
Compact. Sec on 1) However, there are significant differences as to how the compacts are 
structured to achieve these goals.  A er careful, thorough, and though ul reading and analysis 
of the two compacts, the North Carolina State Board of Dental Examiners (NCSBDE) takes the 
posi on of favoring passage of the AADB Compact for the following reasons. 

 

First, the NCSBDE believes that the authority to regulate the prac ce of den stry and dental 
hygiene righ ully belongs to the elected members of the NC General Assembly as enforced 
through a properly authorized Dental Board subject to legisla ve oversight.  The AADB 
compact supports this posi on by clearly sta ng that it is the State Dental Board in Compact 
member states that determines if a den st or dental hygienist is eligible for a compact license. 
(AADB Compact Sec. 6.d)   

By contrast, the CSG compact creates a government agency made up of one (1) appointed 
commissioner from each state.  This commission has the authority to pass rules with the effect 
of state law in each member state and is not subject to oversight by the NC General Assembly, 
any elected North Carolina official, the North Carolina Dental Board, or the North Carolina 
Courts. Should the unelected commission pass a rule that to which North Carolina objects, the 
rule can only be overturned by a majority of member state legislatures enac ng “…a statute or 
resolu on in the same manner used to adopt the Compact, within four (4) years…” (CSG 
Compact Sec. 9.D.)  A court of competent jurisdic on may invalidate a rule only on certain 
grounds defined by the compact, and the only courts where legal challenges may be raised are 
“… the U.S. District Court of the District of Columbia or where the Commission has its principal 
offices…” (CSG Compact Sec. 10.J.3) 

In addi on to enac ng rules with the effect of state law without oversight from any North 
Carolina agencies or officials and without any state-based legal remedies, the Commission also 
has unlimited and unchecked taxing and fee making authority.  The CSG Compact Commission 
may levy and collect an annual assessment from each member state and impose fees on 
individual den sts and dental hygienists in amounts sufficient to cover its annual budget (CSG 
Compact. Sec. 7.E.3) Despite repeated inquiries, the CSG has not been able to provide any 
es mate of what the cost of its annual budget may be.  The NCSBDE simply thinks it is fiscally 
irresponsible to join an organiza on without having some idea of the ini al and on-going 
costs.  

In contrast, the AADB Compact lacks taxing authority and does not levy an annual assessment 
on member states.  All costs are to be borne by fees den sts and dental hygienists pay for the 
privilege of obtaining a Compact License.  These fees are collected only from den sts and dental 
hygienists who voluntarily seek to obtain such a license.  In addi on, the AADB has for years 
maintained a na onwide database of disciplinary ac ons which could be expanded to include 



other administra ve ac ons necessary to support a compact.  The NCSBDE believes this could 
result in considerable savings over the CSG Compact that faces the prospect of building such a 
system from the ground up.   

Second, the AADB Compact con nues to uphold the long-standing North Carolina statute that 
requires dental and dental hygiene graduates to pass a hand-skills examina on conducted by 
a competent third-party before a license is issued.  It is the Board’s belief that tes ng cri cal 
thinking and analy cal skills is not enough for the new licensee.  The prac ce of den stry and 
dental hygiene involves surgically precise movement within the narrow confines of the oral 
cavity o en while doing so in a mirror image.  It is not enough to diagnose and know what must 
be done, rather one must have the prac ced and precise motor skills to heal without harm.  The 
Board believes allowing newly graduated den sts and dental hygienists to perform procedures 
on pa ents without undergoing a hand-skills test is akin to allowing the new pilot to a empt 
landing a fully loaded passenger plane based solely on a wri en examina on without ever 
having taken a check-ride with a cer fied flight examiner.  

The CSG Compact does not require hand-skills tes ng.  This allows den sts and dental hygienists 
from the minority of states that do not require hand-skills tes ng to prac ce in states that do.  If 
the CSG compact was adopted here, North Carolina ci zens would for the first me in history be 
subject to treatment by prac oners whose hand skills have never been evaluated by a 
competent third-party.  This is a risk the NCSBDE is unwilling to support voluntarily.  

Addi onally, this aspect of the CSG compact would put North Carolina dental and dental 
hygiene graduates in an unequal and unfair posi on.  Those who graduate from NC dental and 
dental hygiene schools and plan to prac ce in our state would con nue to be subject to hand-
skills tes ng required by the North Carolina statute as applied through the NC State Board of 
Dental Examiners.  On the other hand, those entering NC through the CSG Compact could 
escape such tes ng.  In fact, the CSG Compact incen vizes students with poor clinical hand-skills 
to seek ini al licensure in a compact member state that does not require hand-skills tes ng.  
Once licensed without such tes ng, the licensee could then move freely across the border to 
North Carolina to prac ce on our residents.  The North Carolina State Board of Dental Examiners 
opposes exposing the ci zens of our state to such a risk and applying unequal treatment to NC 
graduates who would con nue to be required to meet higher tes ng standards.   

On the other hand, the AADB Compact requires all licensee who apply for licensure through the 
Compact to have successfully completed the American Board of Dental Examiners (ADEX) 
examina on – an examina on that tests the hand-skills of den sts and dental hygienists.   Those 
who have not taken the ADEX examina on have an alterna ve pathway that requires the 
applicant to have prac ced at least five (5) years and have passed a similar state or regional 
licensure examina on that tests hand skills.  In either case, those who obtain a compact license 
through the AADB Compact must have undergone hand-skills tes ng.  



Third, the NCSBDE supports a pathway for qualified out-of-state den sts and dental hygienists 
to receive an expedited “license” in North Carolina as opposed to merely being granted a 
“privilege” to prac ce.  Those who qualify and meet the requirements of the AADB Compact 
are awarded an expedited license to prac ce in another Compact member state.   In short, this 
means that the Dental and Dental Hygiene Prac ce Acts and other statutes as currently wri en 
would apply to any person prac cing in North Carolina by virtue of a the AADB “compact 
license.”  No legisla ve or statutory changes to these Prac ce Acts would be necessary since 
they apply to all who are licensed to prac ce den stry or dental hygiene in our state.   While it 
is true that both the AADB and CSG Compacts provide a pathway for den sts and dental 
hygienists to prac ce in other member states without the need to complete cumbersome 
duplica ve applica on procedures, the CSG compact issues a privilege to prac ce rather than a 
license. 

This raises a very important ques on:  is the “privilege” to prac ce legally equivalent to being 
“licensed” to prac ce?  The CSG Compact is silent on this point and current NC statutes do not 
address the rights and responsibili es of those prac cing by virtue of a privilege. However, 
there are several important state and federal statutes that require a prac oner to be licensed 
in order to fully prac ce a profession within a state.  For example, in North Carolina state 
statues require an individual to have a dental license to write a prescrip on to be filled by a NC 
Pharmacist (NCGS 90-46), to form a Professional Corpora on or Professional Limited Liability 
Company (NCGS 90-55), or to own a dental prac ce (NCGS 90-29(c)(11)).  The NCSBDE supports 
the gran ng of an expedited license, as is the case with the AADB Compact, in order to avoid 
legal ques ons or the need for addi onal legisla on to address the differences between a 
privilege and a license.  

For the above primary reasons, the NCSBDE supports adop on of the AADB Compact rather 
than the CSG Compact to the extent that the North Carolina General Assembly deems it 
warranted, necessary, and appropriate to join a dental licensing compact.  The AADB Compact 
would facilitate the interstate prac ce of den stry and dental hygiene and improve access to 
care while maintaining exis ng authority within North Carolina – including legisla ve oversight – 
to protect the public health and safety of the ci zens of our state.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
March 2024 



INTERSTATE 

rev. 3-25-24

DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE 
LICENSURE COMPACT



INTERSTATE DENTAL AND DENTAL HYGIENE LICENSURE COMPACT 1 

The Interstate Dental and Dental Hygiene Licensure Compact is hereby enacted into law and the Governor shall 2 
enter into a Compact on behalf of the State of ___________ with any jurisdiction legally joined therein, in the 3 
form substantially as set forth in this Act. 4 

5 
Section 1 . PURPOSE. 6 
This Compact shall be known as the Interstate Dental and Dental Hygiene Licensure Compact and the purpose of 7 
the Compact is to expedite licensure and increase access to dental health care through licensure boards acting in 8 
cooperation.  The Compact adopts the existing structures most utilized by Dental Boards across the United States, 9 
while ensuring the safety of the public through the sharing of documents and information. This Compact ensures 10 
that each state retains the right to impose an adverse action on a licensee as a home state or as a practicing state. 11 
Each state has an opportunity to share investigations and information with the home state of licensure. The 12 
Compact is operated by state dental board members, administrators and other staff, thus allowing for each state 13 
to maintain its sovereignty. 14 
The Compact: 15 

(a) Allows for expedited licensure portability and ease of movement of licensees between states;16 
(b) Allows each state to continue to regulate the practice of dentistry and dental hygiene within its17 

borders;18 
(c) Creates a common goal of protecting the public by ensuring a uniform licensure standard and19 

sharing of information in the Compact;20 
(d) Allows for licensure in every participating state by requiring passage of the uniform licensure21 

examination that assesses psychomotor and cognitive dental skills and is currently accepted in fifty22 
state (50) licensing jurisdictions and United States territories;23 

(e) Gives licensees one (1) location to maintain professional documentation to expedite license24 
transfers in states, hospitals or institutional credentialing;25 

(f) Facilitates a faster licensure process for relocation or separation of military members and their26 
dependent spouses; there are no Compact fees for military members or their spouses;27 

(g) Alleviates a duplicative process for licensure among multiple states; and28 
(h) Saves applicants money by not having to obtain duplicate documents from a source that charges29 

for the documents.30 
31 

Section 2.  DEFINITIONS 32 
(a) “AADB” means the American Association of Dental Boards (AADB) or its named successor, formerly33 

known as the American Association of Dental Examiners (AADE), originally chartered on September34 
10th, 1896 and renewed in 1944, comprised of State Dental Boards in the United States and its territories;35 

36 
(b) “Attorneys’ Committee” means the committee of attorneys who  currently represent a Member State37 

Dental Board. The Attorneys’ Committee shall participate in the Commission as a non-voting member.38 
An attorney that has previously served as an attorney for a Member State Dental Board may be invited on39 
a year-to-year basis to serve on the Attorneys’ Committee if they have not engaged in an official case40 
against a State Dental Board or have any no other conflict of interest. The Attorneys’ Committee may41 
assist the investigators in working through joint investigation issues between states;42 

43 
(c) “Active-duty military person or spouse” means a Licensee in full-time active-duty status in the active44 

uniformed services of the United States, including members of the National Guard and Reserves. The45 
legal spouse of the military member must be recognized by the military unit as a dependent while the46 
service member is on active duty. Spouses shall receive the same privileges as military members for the47 
purpose of this Compact;48 

49 



(d) “Active Investigation” means an active investigation resulting in formal allegations or charges50 
precipitating a judicial process by a State Dental Board, oversight agency, or other law enforcement entity;51 

52 
(e) “Adverse Action” means an order issued by a State Dental Board or reported to the clearinghouse pursuant53 

to the Commission’s Bylaws and rules that disciplines a Licensee. Adverse Action includes, and is not54 
limited to, the suspension, limiting, or revocation of a License or Compact License Privilege; the55 
imposition of fees and sanctions; and any  temporary emergency order that may be later withdrawn by a56 
Board;57 

58 
(f) “ADEX examination” means the initial licensure examinations developed by the American Board of59 

Dental Examiners, Inc. or its successor;60 
61 

(g) “Bylaws” means the bylaws passed by the Commission or its named successor commission;62 
63 

(h) “Clearinghouse” means the clearinghouse and databank that houses prior Adverse Action documentations,64 
orders and denials of licensure or permits from State Dental Boards that is administered by the AADB or65 
its successor;66 

67 
(i) “CODA” means the Commission on Dental Accreditation or its successor as approved by the United States68 

Department of Education;69 
70 

(j) “Commission” means the Interstate Dental and Dental Hygiene Compact Licensure Commission created71 
pursuant to Section 3 of this Act.72 

73 

(k) “Commissioners” means the two (2) members chosen by each Member State Dental Board to serve as the74 
voting members of the Commission;75 

76 
(l) “Compact” means the Interstate Dental and Dental Hygiene Licensure Compact created pursuant to77 

Section 3 of this Act;78 
79 

(m) “Compact License Privilege” means the expedited dental or dental hygiene license to practice in a Member80 
State that is not the Licensee’s Home State;81 

82 
(n) “Conviction” means an adjudication or formal judgment by a court that an individual is guilty through a83 

plea of guilty or no contest, or a finding of guilt by the court. Evidence of a conviction of a criminal84 
offense by the court shall be considered final for the purposes of considering or imposing disciplinary85 
action by a Member State Dental Board;86 

87 
(o) “Criminal background check” means a criminal background check using the results of fingerprint or other88 

biometric data checks compliant with the requirements of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, with the89 
exception of federal employees who have suitability determination in accordance with 5 C.F.R. 731.202;90 

91 
(p) “Dental hygienist” means any person who:92 

1. Has successfully graduated from a CODA-approved dental hygiene school;93 
2. Has successfully passed the ADEX dental hygiene licensure examination; or has been in practice 594 

years or more and has successfully passed a Regional Board Examination or equivalent state-95 
administered psychomotor licensure examination prior to January 1, 2024;96 

3. Has successfully passed the written national dental hygiene board examination administered by the97 
Joint Commission on National Dental Examinations;98 



4. Possesses a full and unrestricted dental hygiene license issued by a Member State; 99 
5. Has never been convicted or received adjudication, deferred adjudication, community supervision or100 

deferred disposition for any offense by a court of appropriate jurisdiction;101 
6. Has never been a subject of discipline by a Licensing Agency through any Adverse Action, order, or102 

other restriction of the Licensee by a Licensing Agency, with the exception of failure to pay fees or103 
failure to complete continuing education;104 

7. Is not currently under Active Investigation by a Licensing Agency or law enforcement authority in105 
any state, federal or foreign jurisdiction; and106 

8. Meets any jurisprudence requirement established by a Member State Dental Board of a Member State107 
in which a Licensee is seeking a Compact License Privilege.108 

109 
(q) “Dental Practice Act” means the laws and regulations governing the practice of dentistry within a Member110 

State;111 
112 

(r) “Dentist” means any person who:113 
1. Has successfully graduated from a CODA-approved dental school;114 
2. Has successfully passed the ADEX dental  licensure exam; or has been in practice 5 years or more and115 

has successfully passed a Regional Board Examination or equivalent state-administered psychomotor116 
licensure examination prior to January 1, 2024;117 

3. Has successfully passed the written National Dental Board Exam administered by the Joint118 
Commission on National Dental Examinations;119 

4. Possesses a full and unrestricted dental license issued by a Member State Dental Board;120 
5. Has never been convicted or received adjudication, deferred adjudication, community supervision, or121 

deferred disposition for any offense by a court of appropriate jurisdiction;122 
6. Has never been a subject of discipline by a Licensing Agency through any Adverse Action, order, or123 

other restriction of the Licensee by a Licensing Agency, with the exception of failure to pay fees or124 
failure to complete continuing education;125 

7. Has never had a state or federal drug registration, permit, or license restricted, suspended, or revoked126 
by the United States Drug Enforcement Administration or any Licensing Agency that oversees127 
scheduled drug registrations;128 

8. Is not currently under Active Investigation by a Licensing Agency or law enforcement authority in129 
any state, federal or foreign jurisdiction; and130 

9. Meets any jurisprudence requirement established by a Member State Dental Board in which a Licensee131 
is seeking a Compact License Privilege;132 

133 
(s) “Home State” means the state of primary licensure of a Licensee;134 

135 
(t) “License” means the authorization by a Licensing Authority for a dentist or dental hygienist to engage in136 

the unrestricted practice of dentistry or dental hygiene, which would be unlawful without such license;137 
138 

(u) “Licensee” means a Dentist or Dental Hygienist who holds an unrestricted License to practice as a dentists139 
or dental hygienist.140 

141 
(v) “Licensing Agency” means the agency or other entity of a State that is responsible for the licensing of142 

Dentists and Dental Hygienists. If a Member State Dental Board has such responsibility, it shall be deemed143 
a Licensing Agency.144 

145 
(w) “Member State Dental Board” means a state agency in a Member State that protects the public through146 

licensure, regulation, and the education of dentist and dental hygienists, as directed by the state law. All147 



actions taken by a Member State Dental Board shall be under the authority of the laws its State and any 148 
other rights conferred under this Compact; 149 
 150 

(x) “Member State” means a state or United States territory that has enacted the Compact; 151 
 152 

(y) “Regional Board Examination” means initial licensure examinations administered by the Western 153 
Regional Examining Board (WREB), the North East Regional Board of Dental Examiners (NERB), the 154 
Commission on Dental Competency Assessments (CDCA), Council of Interstate Testing Agencies 155 
(CITA), Southern Regional Testing Agency (SRTA), or Central Regional Dental Testing Services 156 
(CRDTS) that assess psychomotor skills; 157 

 158 
(z) “Repository” means the repository of original documents of a Licensee that may include original 159 

transcripts, certification documents, test scores, military training records, previous or current licensing 160 
documents and other sources of materials needed for applications and verification administered by the 161 
AADB or its successor.  The Repository shall receive documents from primary or originating sources 162 
and/or verify their authenticity;  163 

 164 
(aa) “Scope of practice” means the dental-related procedures that require a License, permit, or training, to 165 

undertake the treatment and procedure to be completed on a patient within the Member State’s 166 
requirements; 167 
 168 

(bb) “State” means a state within the United States or a United States Territory; and 169 
 170 

(cc) “State jurisprudence” means the knowledge of a Member State’s laws and rules of dentistry and dental 171 
hygiene.  172 

 173 
Section 3.  COMPACT AND COMMISSION  174 

a) The Member States hereby create the Interstate Dental and Dental Hygiene Licensure Compact and the 175 
Commission. Each State must enact a compact that is not materially different from this Compact, as 176 
determined by the Commission. 177 

  178 
b) Each Member State Dental Board shall have two (2) voting members who shall serve as Commissioners. 179 

Each Commissioner shall have one (1) vote. Member States with separate dental and dental hygiene 180 
Licensing Agencies shall appoint one (1) Commissioner from each licensing agency. One Commissioner 181 
shall be a current member of a Member State Dental Board.  Commissioners may not delegate votes or 182 
vote by proxy, however, if a Commissioner is unable to attend, the Member State may substitute a 183 
Commissioner who meets the same requirements.  184 

 185 
c) Upon five (5) states joining the Compact, the Compact shall become active.  The Commission shall adopt 186 

Bylaws upon becoming active.  187 
 188 

d) The Commission shall meet at least once per calendar year (the “Annual Meeting”) and at additional 189 
times as necessary pursuant to the Bylaws and rules.    190 

 191 
e) At each Annual Meeting, the Commission shall elect a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer from 192 

the membership of the Commission (the “Officers.”) The Officers shall be members of the Commission’s 193 
Executive Committee (the “Executive Committee.”) The Commission shall also elect representatives 194 
from four (4) regional districts established by the Commission to serve on the Executive Committee. All 195 
Officers and Executive Committee representatives shall serve one (1)-year terms.   196 

 197 



f) Quorum for purposes of conducting business shall be a majority of Commissioners attending in person 198 
or virtually.  199 

 200 
g) The Commission shall provide notice of all meetings on its website and in other communications to 201 

Member State Dental Boards. 202 
 203 

h) A vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Commissioners present shall be required for an executive session to 204 
discuss:  205 
1) Items specifically related to participation in a lawsuit or in anticipation of a legal proceeding; 206 
2) Matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal statute; 207 

 3) Information or matters involving law enforcement agencies or information that accuses a person 208 
of a crime or a public censure;  209 
 4) Discussions that would include information of a personal nature that would constitute an 210 
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy; 211 
 5) Anything considered internal practices and procedures or a trade secret; 212 
 6) Other items described in the Commission Bylaws allowing for executive sessions to be called; or 213 
 7) Advice of Legal Counsel. 214 

 215 
i) The Commission shall keep minutes and make them available to all Member States.  216 

 217 
j) The Commission may establish other committees as needed.  218 

 219 
k) The Commission shall prepare an annual report that shall be made available to the legislatures and 220 

governors of the Member States. The annual report shall describe the activities of the Commission during 221 
the preceding calendar year. Such reports shall also include reports of the annual financial audit and any 222 
actions taken by or rules that were adopted by the Commission. 223 

 224 
Section 4. DUTIES OF COMPACT MEMBER STATES 225 
 226 

a) Member States shall submit to the Clearinghouse all Member State Dental Board actions and other 227 
documents and data as determined by the Commission;   228 
 229 

b) Member States shall notify the Commission of any Adverse Action taken by the Member State Dental 230 
Board, any Active Investigation by the Member State Dental Board, any Active Investigation involving 231 
pending criminal charges, or other circumstance as determined by the Commission;  232 
 233 

c) Any Adverse Action, order, restriction or denial of a license or permit on a Licensee or Compact License 234 
Privilege holder shall be reported to the Clearinghouse by the Member State Dental Board;  235 
 236 

d) Member State Dental Boards may submit to the Clearinghouse nonpublic complaints, or disciplinary or 237 
investigatory information not required by Section 4(c).  All investigatory material shall be considered 238 
confidential and not part of a public record unless otherwise specifically required by state statute;  239 

 240 
e) Accept continuing education credits as required by each state; 241 

 242 
f) Documents in the Repository shall be treated by a Member State as the equivalent of a primary or original 243 

source document for licensure;  244 
 245 

g) Member States shall accept a standardized application for a Compact License Privilege.  The standardized 246 
application shall be established by the rules enacted by the Commission;  247 



 248 
h) Member States may agree to share information regarding ongoing investigations and actions, including 249 

joint investigations between states. All investigatory material shall be considered confidential and not part 250 
of a public record unless otherwise specifically required by state statute; and  251 
 252 

i) As part of the Compact enforcement, participating Member States may issue subpoenas and seek 253 
testimony of witnesses, which subpoenas shall be enforced in other Member States and enforced by a 254 
court of competent jurisdiction where the witnesses or evidence is located. 255 
 256 

Section 5. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION 257 
 258 

a) The Commission shall have the duty and power to: 259 
1) Oversee and maintain the administration of the Compact, including the organizational needs, the 260 

financial activities, the hiring of personnel and ongoing activities or needs of the Commission; 261 
2) Promulgate Bylaws and rules to operate the Compact and the Commission; 262 
3) Establish a budget and make expenditures; 263 
4) Have an annual financial audit performed by an independent certified public accounting firm;  264 
5) Issue, upon the request of a Member State Dental Board, advisory opinions concerning the 265 

meaning or interpretation of the Compact and its Bylaws, rules, and actions; 266 
6) Enforce compliance with Compact provisions, the rules promulgated by the Commission, and the 267 

Bylaws, using all necessary and proper means, including but not limited to the use of judicial 268 
process; 269 

7) Hold an Annual Meeting for the Commission where the elections of the Executive Committee and 270 
other issues may be discussed and voted on; 271 

8) Establish personnel policies and programs relating to conflicts of interest, and the rates of 272 
compensation and qualifications of personnel; 273 

9) Accept donations and grants of money, equipment, supplies, materials and services, and to receive, 274 
utilize and dispose of them in a manner consistent with the conflict-of-interest policies established 275 
by the Commission; 276 

10) Report annually to the legislatures and governors of the Member State Dental Boards concerning 277 
the activities of the Commission during the preceding calendar year. Such reports shall also include 278 
reports of annual financial audits, all actions of the Commission, rules adopted by the Commission, 279 
and any recommendations by the Commission; and 280 

11) Coordinate education, training and public awareness regarding the Compact, its implementation, 281 
and its operation. 282 

 283 
b)     The Executive Committee shall have the power to act on behalf of the Commission, with the exception of 284 

rulemaking, during periods when the Commission is not in session. When acting on behalf of the 285 
Commission, the Executive Committee shall oversee the administration of the Compact, including 286 
enforcement and compliance of the Compact.  287 

 288 
c)      The officers and employees of the Commission shall be immune from suit and liability, either personally 289 

or in their official capacity, for a claim for damage to or loss of property or personal injury or other civil 290 
liability caused or arising out of, or relating to, an actual or alleged act, error or omission that occurred, or 291 
that such person had a reasonable basis for believing occurred, within the scope of Commission 292 
employment, duties or responsibilities; provided, that such person shall not be protected from suit or 293 
liability for damage, loss, injury or liability caused by the intentional or willful and wanton misconduct of 294 
such person. 295 

 296 



 d)   The liability of the executive director and employees of the Commission or representatives of the 297 
Commission, acting within the scope of such person's employment or duties for acts, errors or omissions 298 
occurring within such person's state may not exceed the limits of liability set forth under the constitution 299 
and laws of that state for state officials, employees and agents. The Commission shall be considered to be 300 
an instrumentality of the states for the purposes of any such action. Nothing in this subsection shall be 301 
construed to protect such person from suit or liability for damage, loss, injury or liability caused by the 302 
intentional or willful and wanton misconduct of such person. 303 

 304 
e)   The Commission shall defend the Commission’s executive director, its employees, and, subject to the 305 

approval of the attorney general or other appropriate legal counsel of the Member State represented by an 306 
Commission representative, shall defend such Commission representative in any civil action seeking to 307 
impose liability arising out of an actual or alleged act, error or omission that occurred within the scope of 308 
Commission employment, duties or responsibilities, or that the defendant had a reasonable basis for 309 
believing occurred within the scope of Commission employment, duties or responsibilities, provided that 310 
the actual or alleged act, error or omission did not result from intentional or willful and wanton misconduct 311 
on the part of such person. 312 

 313 
f)   To the extent not covered by the state involved, Member State, or the Commission, the representatives or 314 

employees of the Commission shall be held harmless in the amount of a settlement or judgment, including 315 
attorney fees and costs, obtained against such persons arising out of an actual or alleged act, error or 316 
omission that occurred within the scope of Commission employment, duties or responsibilities, or that 317 
such persons had a reasonable basis for believing occurred within the scope of Commission employment, 318 
duties or responsibilities, provided that the actual or alleged act, error or omission did not result from 319 
intentional or willful and wanton misconduct on the part of such persons. 320 

 321 
Section 6. APPLICATION, ELIGIBILITY, AND ISSUANCE OF COMPACT LICENSE 322 

PRIVILEGE TO A MEMBER STATE. 323 
 324 

a) A dentist or dental hygienist applying for Compact License Privileges shall meet the requirements of a 325 
Dentist as listed in Section (2)(r) of this Compact or a Dental Hygienist as listed in Section (2)(p) of this 326 
Compact and hold a current License in a Member State under this Compact. 327 
 328 

b) Each Dentist or Dental Hygienist shall designate a Home State of licensure. The Home State shall be 329 
determined by: 330 
 331 

1) The State of primary residence for the Dentist or Dental Hygienist, where twenty-five percent 332 
(25%) of their practice within one year occurs. An active-duty military member or their spouse 333 
may choose a Home State as designated with the military but are not required to meet the 334 
requirement of twenty-five percent (25%) practice being within their Home State; or 335 

  336 
2) If no State qualifies under Section 6(b)(1), then the State where the Dentist or Dental Hygienist 337 

filed the previous year’s federal tax return.   338 
 339 

c) A Dentist or Dental Hygienist may redesignate a Home State no more than one time in a calendar year if 340 
the qualifications of a Home State are met. 341 
 342 

d) A Dentist or Dental hygienist seeking a Compact License Privilege (the “Applicant”) shall apply to their 343 
Home State Dental Board for a letter stating that the Applicant is eligible for Compact License Privileges. 344 

 345 



e) The Home State Dental Board shall determine the eligibility of an application for a Compact License 346 
Privilege and shall issue a letter of approval or denial of the application for a Compact License Privilege. 347 

 348 
f) The letter from the Applicant’s Home State Dental Board approving the application shall be submitted 349 

to the Member State Dental Board for the Member State in which the Applicant proposes to practice, and 350 
shall include: (i) the Compact application packet; (ii) authorization to seek access to the Applicant’s  351 
Repository documents; (iii) any additional information that may be required by the proposed Compact 352 
License Privilege state; and (iv) any required fees. The Member State Dental Board shall review the 353 
application to confirm compliance with the Member State’s laws and regulations. Following such review, 354 
if the Member State Dental Board approves the application, it shall issue a Compact License Privilege 355 
from the proposed Member State  to the Applicant.  356 

 357 
g) Appeals of a denial of a Compact License Privilege application shall be filed with the Member State 358 

Dental Board making such determination, and shall be filed within thirty (30) dates of the date of the 359 
denial.  360 

 361 
h) A Licensee holding a Compact License Privilege shall notify the Commission within ten (10) business 362 

days of any Adverse Action taken against a License held in a state that is not a Member State. 363 
 364 

i) A Compact License Privilege may be revoked, suspended or limited by the issuing Member State Dental 365 
Board if at any time the Licensee’s Home State license is revoked, suspended or limited. 366 

 367 
j) The Commission shall issue rules on the duration of a Compact License Privilege, the application and 368 

renewal process for a Compact License Privilege, and any application fees. 369 
 370 

k) Eligibility or ineligibility to receive a Compact License Privilege shall not limit the ability of a Licensee 371 
to seek a state license through the regular process outside of the Compact.  372 

 373 
7.  JURISDICTION OVER COMPACT LICENSE PRIVILEGE HOLDERS 374 

a) Each Licensee holding a Compact License Privilege shall be subject to and comply with the laws and 375 
regulations of the Member State in which such Licensee  practices under a Compact License Privilege.  376 
 377 

b) Each Licensee holding a Compact License Privilege shall be subject to the jurisdiction and authority of 378 
the Member State Dental Board of the state in which such Licensee practices, as if they held a license 379 
issued from such Member State Dental Board. Such Compact License Privilege holder shall be deemed 380 
a “Licensee” of the Member State Dental Board for purposes of such board taking an Adverse Action. 381 

 382 

c) Each Licensee holding a Compact License Privilege shall list a current address with the Commission 383 
that shall serve as their official address of service. 384 

 385 
d) A Licensee holding a Compact License Privilege may have an Adverse Action taken against them by: 386 

 387 
1) The Member State Dental Board of the Member State in which they are practicing with a 388 

Compact License Privilege; 389 
2) The Licensee’s Home State; or  390 
3) The State Licensing Authority of a State that is not a Member State from which the Licensee 391 

holds a License. 392 
 393 



e) A Home State may take an Adverse Action against the holder of a Compact License Privilege,   394 
regardless of where the actions giving rise to the Adverse Action occurred. 395 

f) Any Member State in which the Compact Licensee holds a Compact License Privilege may investigate 396 
an allegation of a violation of the laws and rules of the practice of dentistry or dental hygiene in any 397 
other State where the Compact Licensee holds a Compact License Privilege. 398 

 399 
Section 8.  FEES AND MILITARY WAIVER 400 
a) The Commission shall issue rules regarding the use of the Repository by each holder of a Compact 401 

License Privilege.  402 
 403 

b) A Member State Dental Board issuing a Compact License Privilege authorizing practice in its State 404 
may impose a fee for a Compact License Privilege, for ether initial issuance or any renewal..  405 
 406 

c) No Compact fee shall be required of any  active-duty military member and/or their spouse up to one 407 
(1) year after separation. Each Member State issuing a Compact License Privilege may waive fees for 408 
active-duty military and/or their spouse as required by each individual state statute. 409 
  410 

d) Active-duty military may transfer military training records to the Repository without a fee.  411 
 412 
Section 9. JOINT INVESTIGATIONS AND DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 413 

a) Each Member State shall name a point of contact for joint investigations between Member State Dental 414 
Boards.  415 
 416 

b) Member State Dental Boards may participate with other Member State Dental Boards in joint 417 
investigations of Licensees that are subject to this Compact.  418 
 419 

c) Member State Dental Boards may share investigative, litigation or other materials in furtherance of 420 
any joint or individual investigation of a Compact License Privilege holder. 421 
 422 

d) A subpoena issued by a Member State or Member State Dental Board shall be enforceable in other 423 
Member States as allowed by law.  424 

 425 
e) If a Compact License Privilege holder has an Adverse Action taken by any Member State Dental Board 426 

against the Compact License Privilege holder, the Compact License Privilege holder, Licensee shall 427 
automatically be subject to discipline by other Member State Dental Boards. 428 

 429 
f) If a Compact License Privilege holder has an Adverse Action taken against their Home State license, 430 

including being revoked, surrendered, or relinquished in lieu of discipline or suspended, then 431 
automatically all other Compact License Privileges shall be placed in the same status. The Home State 432 
Dental Board shall notify the Commission and the Commission shall issue a notice to all Member 433 
State Dental Boards of such Adverse Action.   434 
 435 

g) If discipline or an Adverse Action is taken against a Compact License Privilege holder in a Member 436 
State, the Member State Board shall notify the Commission and the Home State of the Compact 437 
License Privilege holder. The Home State may deem the action conclusive as a matter of law and fact 438 
decided and may: 439 

 440 
1) Impose the same or lesser sanction consistent with the Home State’s laws; or 441 

 442 



2) Pursue separate actions against the Compact License Privilege holder under its laws, regardless 443 
of the sanctions pursued by the Member State Dental Board.  444 

 445 
Section 10. OTHER REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION FROM THE REPOSITORY AND THE 446 

CLEARINGHOUSE 447 
a) Insurance companies and entities verifying documents for the purpose of licenses extended to a Dentist or 448 

Dental Hygienist may seek information from the Clearinghouse for public record documents; 449 
 450 

b) A Dentist or Dental Hygienist may submit a request to the Commission to allow any hiring employer, 451 
entity, or insurance company to access documents from the Repository for the purposes of credentialing, 452 
licensing or other privileges;    453 
 454 

c) The Commission shall set a fee schedule for these services. 455 
  456 
Section 11. RULEMAKING FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMISSION 457 

a) The Commission shall promulgate reasonable rules in order to effectively and efficiently implement and 458 
achieve the purposes and administration of the Compact. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the 459 
Commission exercises its rulemaking authority in a manner that is beyond the scope of the purposes of 460 
the Compact or the powers granted hereunder, then such an action by the Commission may be determined 461 
to be invalid and have no force or effect. 462 
 463 

b) Rules issued by the Commission shall have the force of law in each Member State. 464 
 465 

c) Rules deemed appropriate for the operations of the Commission shall be made pursuant to a rulemaking 466 
process that substantially conforms to the Model State Administrative Procedure Act of 2010, and 467 
subsequent amendments thereto. 468 
 469 

Section 12. OVERSIGHT OF THE COMPACT 470 
a) The executive, legislative, and judicial branches of state government in each Member State shall enforce 471 

the Compact and shall take all actions necessary and appropriate to effectuate the Compact's purposes 472 
and intent to allow for expedited licensure for the purpose of mobility. The provisions of the Compact 473 
and the rules promulgated hereunder shall have standing as statutory law but shall not override existing 474 
state authority to regulate the practice of dentistry and dental hygiene.  475 
 476 

b) All courts may take judicial notice of the Compact and the rules in any judicial or administrative 477 
proceeding in a Member State pertaining to the subject matter of the Compact which may affect the 478 
powers, responsibilities or actions of the Commission. 479 
 480 

c) The Commission shall be entitled to receive all service of process in any such proceeding and shall have 481 
standing to intervene in the proceeding for all purposes. Failure to provide service of process to the 482 
Commission shall render a judgment or order void as to the Commission, the Compact or promulgated 483 
rules. 484 
 485 

Section 13. ENFORCEMENT AND DEFAULT PROCEDURES 486 
a) The Commission, in the reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall enforce the provisions and rules of the 487 

Compact. 488 
 489 

b) The grounds for default under this Compact by a Member State include, but are not limited to, failure of 490 
a Member State to perform such obligations or responsibilities imposed upon it by the Compact or by the 491 
rules and Bylaws of the Commission promulgated under the Compact. 492 



 493 
c) If the Commission determines that a Member State has defaulted in the performance of its obligations or 494 

responsibilities under the Compact, or the Bylaws or promulgated rules, the Commission shall: 495 
1) provide written notice to the defaulting state and other Member States of the nature of the 496 

default, the means of curing the default and any action taken by the Commission. The  497 
Commission shall specify the conditions by which the defaulting state must cure its default; 498 
and 499 

2) provide remedial training and specific technical assistance regarding the default. 500 
 501 

d) If the defaulting state fails to cure the default, the defaulting state shall be terminated from the Compact 502 
upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the Commissioners and all rights, privileges and benefits 503 
conferred by the Compact shall terminate on the effective date of termination. A cure of the default does 504 
not relieve the offending state of obligations or liabilities incurred during the period of the default. 505 
 506 

e) Termination of membership in the Compact shall be imposed only after all other means of securing 507 
compliance have been exhausted. Notice of intent to terminate shall be given by the Commission to the 508 
Governor, the majority and minority leaders of the defaulting state's legislature and each of the Member 509 
States. 510 
 511 

f) The Commission shall establish rules and procedures to address licenses and Compact License Privilege 512 
holders that are materially impacted by the termination of a Member State or the withdrawal of a Member 513 
State. 514 
 515 

g) The Commission shall not bear any costs relating to any state that has been found to be in default or 516 
which has been terminated from the Compact, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon in writing between 517 
the Commission and the defaulting state. 518 
 519 

h) The defaulting state may appeal the action of the Commission by petitioning the federal district where 520 
the Commission has its principal offices. The prevailing party shall be awarded all costs of such litigation, 521 
including reasonable attorney fees. 522 
 523 

i) The Commission shall not bear any costs relating to any state that has been found to be in default or 524 
which has been terminated from the Compact, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon in writing between 525 
the Commission and the defaulting state. 526 
 527 

j) The remedies herein shall not be the exclusive remedies of the Commission. The Commission may avail 528 
itself of any other remedies available under state law or the regulation of a profession. 529 

 530 
Section 14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 531 

a) The Commission shall attempt, upon the request of a Member State Dental Board, to resolve disputes 532 
which are subject to the Compact and which may arise among Member State Dental Boards. 533 
 534 

b) The Commission shall promulgate rules providing for both mediation and binding dispute resolution, as 535 
appropriate. 536 
 537 

 538 
Section 15. MEMBER STATES, EFFECTIVE DATE AND AMENDMENT 539 

a) Any state is eligible to become a Member State of the Compact. 540 
 541 



b) The Compact shall become effective and binding upon legislative enactment of the Compact into law by 542 
no less than five (5) states. Thereafter, it shall become effective and binding on a state upon enactment of 543 
the Compact into law by that State. 544 
 545 

c) The governors of non-member states, or their designees, shall be invited to participate in the activities of 546 
the Commission on a nonvoting basis prior to adoption of the Compact by all States. 547 
 548 

d) The Commission may propose amendments to the Compact for enactment by the Member States. No 549 
amendment shall become effective and binding upon the Commission and the Member States unless and 550 
until it is enacted into law by unanimous consent of the Member States. 551 
 552 

Section 16. WITHDRAWAL 553 
a) Once effective, the Compact shall continue in force and remain binding upon each and every Member 554 

State; provided, however, that a Member State may withdraw from the Compact after giving appropriate 555 
notice by specifically repealing the statute which enacted the Compact into law. 556 
 557 

b) The Licensee’s Compact License Privilege shall remain in effect for six (6) months from the date of the 558 
Member State Dental Board withdrawal.   559 
 560 

c) The withdrawing State shall immediately notify the chairperson of the Commission in writing upon the 561 
introduction of legislation repealing the Compact by the withdrawing state. 562 
 563 

d) The Commission shall notify the other Member States of the withdrawing State's intention to withdraw 564 
within sixty (60) days of its receipt of notice provided under Section 16(c) of this section. 565 
 566 

e) Reinstatement following withdrawal of a Member State shall occur upon the withdrawing state 567 
reenacting the Compact or upon such later date as determined by the Commission. 568 
 569 

f) The Commission shall issue rules to address the impact of the withdrawal of a Member State on Licenses 570 
granted by other Member States to dentists and dental hygienists who designated the withdrawing 571 
Member State as their Home State. 572 
 573 

Section 17. DISSOLUTION 574 
a) The Compact shall dissolve effective upon the date of the withdrawal or default of the Member State 575 

which reduces the membership in the Compact to one (1) Member State. 576 
 577 

b) Upon the dissolution of the Compact, the Compact shall become null and void and shall be of no further 578 
force or effect, and the business and affairs of the Commission shall be concluded and surplus funds 579 
shall be distributed in accordance with the Bylaws. 580 
 581 

Section 18. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION 582 
a) The provisions of the Compact shall be severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence or provision is 583 

deemed unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the Compact shall be enforceable. 584 
 585 

b) The provisions of the Compact shall be liberally construed to effectuate its purposes. 586 
 587 

Section 19. BINDING EFFECT OF COMPACT AND OTHER LAWS 588 
a) Nothing herein prevents the enforcement of any other law of a Member State that is not inconsistent 589 

with the Compact. 590 
 591 



b) All lawful actions of the Commission, including all rules and Bylaws promulgated by the Commission, 592 
shall be binding upon the Member States. 593 
 594 

c) All agreements between the Commission and the Member States shall beare binding in accordance 595 
with their terms. 596 
 597 

d) In the event any provision of the Compact exceeds the constitutional limits imposed on the legislature 598 
of any Member State, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of the conflict with the 599 
constitutional provision in question in that Member State. 600 

 601 
Section 20. RULES OF ORDER 602 

The most current edition of the American Institute of Parliamentarians Standard Code of Parliamentary 603 
Procedure shall all meetings of the Commission, including its committees, in those situations not 604 
otherwise covered in the Bylaws. 605 



NEVADA STATE BOARD  

of 
DENTAL EXAMINERS 

 

 

 

Board Teleconference Meeting 

 

Wednesday, June 12th, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT BOOK  





 
 
 
June 11, 2024 
 
RE: Dentist and Dental Hygienist Compact  

The Nevada Dental Hygienists’ Association (NDHA) has policy dating back to 
2001 that supports licensure portability. NDHA supports the Dentist/Dental Hygienist 
Compact, in collaboration with the Nevada Dental Association, the Department of 
Defense, the Council of State Governments, American Dental Association, and the 
American Dental Hygienists’ Association along with nine (9) state legislatures and 
many educational entities. Key considerations for Nevada are: 

Benefits for the State 
• Promotes workforce development and strengthens labor markets. 
• Expands consumer access to highly qualified practitioners. 
• Enhances public safety through a shared interstate data system of licensure and 
disciplinary information, allowing for rapid verification of licensure status and 
cooperation among states.  
• Preserves state sovereignty. 
Benefits for State Dentistry Licensing Authorities 
• Reduces administrative burden.  
• Creates a compact information system that supports the facilitation of licensure and 
discipline information for dentists and dental hygienists.  
• Expands cooperation among state licensure boards on investigations and disputes.  
• Allows regulators to retain jurisdiction over licensees practicing in their state 
The Nevada Dental Hygienists’ Association seeks the State Board of Dental 
Examiners endorsement for the DDH Compact. 
Respectfully, 
 
Nevada Dental Hygienists’ Association Government Affairs Committee 
Caryn Solie, RDH, FADHA, Committee Co-chair 

 
 

 
 

 


	Agenda
	4(a)(1)
	5(c)
	5(c)(1)
	5(c)(1)(i)
	5(c)(1)(ii)
	5(c)(1)(iii)
	5(d)
	5(d)(1)
	5(d)(2)
	5(d)(3)
	6
	6(a)
	6(a)(1)
	6(b)
	6(c)
	6(d)
	6(e)



